
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 11 November 2019. 
 01476 406080

Paul Thomas, Interim Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Tuesday, 19 November 2019 at 10.30 am
Witham Room - South Kesteven House, St. Peter's Hill, 

Grantham. NG31 6PZ

Committee 
Members:

Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman)
Councillor Mark Whittington (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Bob Adams, Councillor David Bellamy, Councillor Phil Dilks, Councillor Philip 
Knowles, Councillor Annie Mason, Councillor Charmaine Morgan and Councillor Linda 
Wootten

Invited 
Cabinet 

Members

Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the Council
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet Member for Finance

Agenda
1.  Comments from members of the public.

To receive comments of views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion.

2.  Membership
The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

3.  Apologies

4.  Disclosure of interests
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


5.  Action notes of the meeting held on 5 September 2019 (Pages 3 - 14)

6.  Update from previous meeting

7.  Finance Update Report- quarter 2 2019/20
Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance.

(Pages 15 - 37)

8.  Quarter 2 performance
Report of the Leader of the Council.

(Pages 39 - 49)

9.  Fees and Charges - Charging Policy
Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance.

(Pages 51 - 58)

10.  Additional meeting
To confirm an additional meeting date of the Committee.

11.  Work programme
Members to review the Committee’s work programme for 2019/20.

(Pages 59 - 60)

12.  Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent



1

Meeting of the
Finance, Economic 
Development and Corporate 
Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Thursday, 5 September 2019, 10.30 am

Committee Members present

Councillor Bob Adams
Councillor David Bellamy
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman)
Councillor Philip Knowles

Councillor Charmaine Morgan
Councillor Jacky Smith
Councillor Mark Whittington (Vice-
Chairman)
Councillor Sue Woolley

Cabinet Members

Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy Leader of the Council
Councillor Robert Reid, the Cabinet Member for Communities, Health and Wellbeing
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet Member for Finance

Other Members present

Councillor Ashley Baxter

Officers

Strategic Director, Transformation and Change (Lee Sirdifield)
Director of Finance (Richard Wyles)
Interim Strategic Director, Growth (Ken Lyon)
Assistant Director, Housing (Harry Rai)
Organisational Development and Change Manager (Victoria Brackenbury)
Head of Finance (Alison Hall-Wright)
Principle Planning Policy Officer (Shaza Brannon)
Democratic Officer (Naomi Page)

22. Comments from members of the public

There were no comments received from members of the public.

3

Agenda Item 5



2

23. Membership

The Committee was advised that Councillor Woolley would be substituting for 
Councillor Wootten and Councillor Mrs Jacky Smith would be substituting for 
Councillor Mason for this meeting only.

24. Apologies

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Robins, the Cabinet 
Member for Planning.

25. Disclosure of interests

No interests were disclosed.

26. Action notes of the meeting held on 16 July 2019

The action notes from the meeting held on 16 July 2019 were noted.

27. Update from previous meeting

Advertising and Sponsorship Initiative

The Vice-Chairman of the Committee apologised for not yet providing a 
written note to the Committee of the findings of his review regarding the 
awarding of a contract to Publitas. Having noted the Action notes of the 
previous meeting, Members confirmed that they were satisfied the relevant 
points had been covered, and there would be no need for a further written 
statement from the Vice-Chairman.  

Utilisation of the Disabled Facilities Grant funding

At its meeting on 16 July 2019, the Committee identified the issue of 
underspending with regards to the Disabled Facilities Grant funding. It was 
requested that an update be given, to set out the action being taken to reduce 
the underspend. The Cabinet Member for Communities, Health and Wellbeing 
received a written response on 9 August 2019. Members requested that this 
information was circulated.

Action Point

 The Disabled Facilities Grant update to be circulated to all 
Members of the Committee

The Cabinet Member for Communities, Health and Wellbeing was present to 
provide an update. He explained that the Council had spent a significant figure 
on disabled adaptations for our own housing stock, but this could not be 

4



3

included in the expenditure figure under discussion, as Disabled Facilities 
Grants were not available for the Council to use on its own properties. This 
was an challenge experienced  by district councils on a national level. The 
Cabinet Member explained that the funding was distributed via Lincolnshire 
County Council, with the relevant amounts being dispersed according to each 
district. The Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee would 
be addressing the dispersal of funds in more detail at their next meeting. One 
Member expressed concerns that the underutilisation of the Disabled Facilities 
Grants contradicted national trends indicating an increasingly older, vulnerable 
population. It was suggested that the availability of the provision could be 
promoted more effectively to those most likely to require access to the 
funding. It was, however, noted that the number of referrals received was 
influenced by the availability of Occupational Therapists across the district.

28. Finance update report - quarter 1 2019/20

Members were advised to consider the report of the Cabinet Member for 
Finance outlining the Council’s forecast 2019/20 financial position as at the 
end of quarter 1. At the end of quarter 1, the Revenue budget stood at 
£19.796m and a forecast overspend of £461k. One of the most significant 
variances to the Revenue Budget General Fund was the forecast 
underachievement of the workforce efficiency target (vacancy factor). Officers 
explained that this target was a workforce efficiency measure used to reflect in 
the budget provision any gaps between an employee leaving the organisation 
and a replacement being recruited.   

Members were informed of the current known budget pressures for 2019/20, 
including income from Council-owned car parks, trader levels at markets, 
operational costs relating to St Martin’s Park and the challenges securing the 
budgeted transformation and procurement savings. At the end of quarter 1, 
only a proportion of the budgeted savings and income generation were on 
target to be achieved. Significant variances to the Housing Revenue Account, 
General Fund Programme and HRA Capital Programme budgets were 
outlined to Members. 

As the information within the report represented the first quarter of the year 
only, Members were advised that a clearer understanding of the Council’s 
financial position in relation to budgets would be able to be given at the end of 
quarter 2. 

Members of the Committee were then given the opportunity to ask questions 
or discuss different aspects of the report:

 One Member noted that it would be useful to have numerical figures 
relating to market stalls occupied in towns throughout the district, in 
order to support understanding of the red RAG status for markets in 
Appendix B.

5



4

Action Point

 Officers to provide a breakdown of the usage of market stalls 
across towns in the district

 Members asked for further explanation of the budget variance in 
relation to dwelling rents in the Housing Revenue Account budget. 
Officers advised that this variance could be attributed to an increase in 
right to buys over the 2018/19 period, which reduced the total number 
of properties from which rent could be collected. It was noted that the 
working assumption in the Housing Revenue Account business model 
may need to be updated in light of the sustained increase in right to 
buys in excess of the associated assumption.  

 One Member asked if there could be an update provided on the New 
Homes Bonus. Officers explained that they had not received an update 
from central government regarding this, but at this stage it was 
assumed that the current four year legacy payment model would 
continue. As central government was yet to confirm the payment 
amount for the next financial year, the challenge for the Council moving 
forward would be balancing the cost of potential external borrowing 
against investment.  

 Members asked for information regarding income for car parks. It was 
suggested that an account of historical trends for car parking income 
over the past couple of years would aid their work to ensure that usage 
was economically driven.

Action Point

 Members to receive figures relating to car park income in 
Grantham

 One Member asked if the sponsorship money for the Bourne CiCLE 
festival had been received. The final account for the festival had not yet 
been confirmed.

Action Point

 The final account of the Bourne CiCLE festival to be confirmed 
to the Committee at the next meeting

 Members requested further explanation of the budget variances for the 
General Fund Programme relating to the Guildhall Arts Centre projector 
and the Public Realm works. The Deputy Leader of the Council 
explained that there had not been a business case to back the projector 
scheme at the Guildhall Arts Centre. In relation to the Public Realm, 
unforeseen costs during construction works had occurred, including the 
need to provide a separate boiler system for the Civic Suite when it 
became clear that it would not be feasible to link the heating system to 

6



5

the main offices, as originally planned. Although this outcome had 
caused budget variances, it had also created the advantage of allowing 
the Civic Suite to be used as a stand-alone building. 

 Members suggested that the RAG system for categorising budget 
variances in Appendix B needed further explanation. The system was a 
new introduction to the significant variance analysis report. It was 
introduced primarily to highlight areas influenced by external factors 
outside of the Council’s control, identifying when these influences may 
adversely affect budget projections.

29. Quarter 1 performance

At the Committee’s meeting of 16 July 2019, questions had been raised by 
Members with reference to the performance report for quarters 3 and 4 of 
2018/19. Hard copies of the responses to these questions were circulated.

Members were advised to consider the Report of the Deputy Leader of the 
Council, which set out performance information for quarter 1 of 2019/20. Also 
included in the report was an update on the progress of the Microsoft Power 
BI development as a new approach to performance reporting. 

Members were advised that of the twenty one corporate performance 
indicators, three were at amber status, meaning they were not achieving their 
target at the end of quarter 1. 

Included in the indicators at amber status was the percentage of rent collected 
in the quarter 1 period. This was attributed to an increase in arrears resulting 
from the further roll out of Universal Credit across the district, in addition to an 
increase in unrecoverable debts relating to deceased tenants and evictions. It 
was not considered to be a significant shortfall at this stage in the financial 
year. 

Also at amber status was the number of apprenticeships hosted within the 
Council. Members were informed that further recruitment opportunities for 
apprenticeships were in the pipeline, including degree apprenticeships and 
LGV apprenticeships. The Human Resources team would continue to work 
with service areas across the Council to identify further apprenticeship 
opportunities moving forward.

Members noted that the percentage of waste sent for reuse, recycling and 
composting also remained within the amber threshold for quarter 1. This 
indicator reflected the ongoing issue of the contamination of silver recycling 
bins across the district. Officers advised that this issue is part of a county-wide 
problem currently being addressed by Lincolnshire County Council. Members 
expressed their concern over the high contaminations levels in silver bins, and 
felt that this needed considering in further detail by the relevant Committee. 

Recommendation

7



6

That the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee consider the 
percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and 
composting, including the level of contamination of silver bins to 
support the work being undertaken by Lincolnshire County Council and 
within the Council’s own service area for Waste and Recycling.

Attention then turned to the indicators meeting or exceeding their targets at 
the end of quarter 1. The percentage of streets meeting the clean streets 
standard was noted to be performing particularly well, with over 97% of streets 
assessed meeting the standard. The percentage of planning applications 
approved also remained high.

A presentation of the new Performance Reporting Framework using Microsoft 
Power BI software was given by the Strategic Director, Transformation and 
Change, providing Members with examples of interactive dashboards for 
different service areas. Dashboards could also be configured for the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees, displaying corporate indicators as requested by 
each Committee. Members were advised that the website displaying the 
information would be linked directly to analytics, allowing for the display of live 
data. It was intended that this data could then be used to track and plan based 
on real-time statistics, providing a greater level of insight and detail than 
current information allowed.

Members were then invited to make comments or ask questions arising from 
the presentation:

 Members asked about the possibility of information relating to overall 
strategic objectives being shown by the software, allowing the 
Committee to focus primarily on overall performance rather than 
operational details. It was indicated that the Committee could decide 
over a period of time which indicators they felt held the most value for 
their role.

 Members enquired as to the access ambition for the software. The 
framework would be rolled out incrementally, with each service area 
and committee providing input on the performance indicators needed 
on their corresponding dashboards. Officers could then look at 
formulating dashboards relating to Member Portfolios or Ward areas. 
Information would be shared to the public domain initially as static 
views. The current priority would be collating the data sets in order for 
them to provide relevant meaning for each target audience. 

 Members suggested that that the Customer Services dashboard could 
provide useful information to inform the development of indicators 
available to the public, as it would show their reasons for contacting the 
Council and therefore the areas in which they expressed significant 
interest. 

 Members mentioned a number of areas they would like to see further 
performance indicator information for, including the number of legal 

8



7

actions taken due to non-payment of council tax and rent, the financial 
implications of providing temporary accommodation, the progress of 
planning appeals in addition to applications and the frequency and 
quality of grass cutting across the district. It was also suggested that it 
would be helpful to see performance indictor information relating to 
complaints. 

 Members expressed that an explanation of housing application bands 
one, two and three, as well as the emergency band, would improve 
understanding of the performance measure relating to the housing 
register.

 Members commented that the figures provided within performance 
indicator information would hold increased value if displayed alongside 
data from previous quarters, to provide context and a basis for 
comparison. Officers advised that this would be possible within the new 
framework.

 It was noted by Members that additional data in the form of numerical 
or monetary figures would provide greater transparency within the 
performance reporting framework. Members felt that this would provide 
a clearer display to avoid abstract figures and aid a full understanding 
of the practical reality of the percentages given. 

 It was commented that in order to provide optimal value, performance 
information should include trends, targets, benchmarks and 
implications. In some instances, it was noted that our targets could be 
set above national targets if the Council had demonstrated that it was 
consistently achieving above them. Members also noted that it would 
be useful to have an indication of how targets had been originally set, in 
order to provide a basis for reviewing how they had been adjusted over 
time. Officers confirmed that targets had evolved over time to 
correspond with developing needs and expectations, and the new 
Performance Indicator Framework was a further opportunity to refresh 
and review them.   

 Members asked if it was possible to compare our performance to other 
district councils of a similar size as a benchmark. Officers stated that 
tools allowing this comparison had been used as part of the 
transformation work. However, due to all authorities measuring and 
interpreting performance data differently, the challenge in using this 
approach would be ensuring that an accurate comparison could be 
made.

 Members considered that there would need to be further discussion in 
relation to which performance indicators would provide the most value 
for each of the Committees, and it was suggested that a separate 
workshop alongside officers could facilitate this.

Action Point

 A workshop to be provided for Members in relation to the new 
Performance Framework

9



8

30. Local Plan - proposed main modifications

Members were given an explanation of the background behind the 
development of the Local Plan to date, including a general outline of the 
proposed Main Modifications of the report. The Main Modifications had been 
recommended in consultation by the independent Inspector. In order for the 
Local Plan to be assessed as sound by the Inspector, and thereby adopted by 
the Council, the Main Modifications were a requirement. If the 
recommendations were to be rejected, the Council would need to start on the 
production of a new Local Plan.

The Committee were then invited to make comments relating to the proposed 
Main Modifications, which would be taken into consideration by Cabinet at its 
meeting on 10 September 2019. A summary of the comments can be found 
below:

 Concerns were raised from Members with regard to the Main 
Modification requesting an amendment to Policy H2 on affordable 
housing (pg. 12 of Schedule of Proposed Main Modifications). 
Members expressed concerns that reducing the Affordable Housing 
requirement in the urban area of Grantham to 20% may adversely 
affect potential residents of lower income households. Although it was 
confirmed that this Main Modification had been put forward by the 
Inspector due to independently produced evidence submitted with the 
Plan, Members requested a more in-depth explanation of why this 
Modification was needed. 

The Assistant Director of Housing confirmed that the Modification 
related primarily to how the Plan would be deliverable in practical 
terms. The reduction in the percentage of affordable housing required 
could potentially increase the number of schemes desiring to develop in 
the area, thereby also increasing the number of affordable homes 
available overall. If this percentage were to remain at 30%, it was 
anticipated that there would not be enough schemes to allow for a 
deliverable Plan. Work had been independently carried out to inform 
this decision. Members considered the explanation to address their 
concerns. It was also noted by Members that the Affordable Housing 
requirement includes social housing. 

 Members discussed their concerns relating to the Main Modification to 
amend policy H1 (pgs. 10 & 11 of the Schedule of Proposed Main 
Modifications) to increase the indicative number of units in a number of 
areas. Members considered there to be a significant increase in the 
number of units in the market towns and villages such as Barrowby and 
Ancaster. Members expressed their concern surrounding the impact 
that these developments would have on local residents, including a 

10



9

number of Members’ Ward Constituents and queried whether the 
development of other areas could have relieved some of this pressure. 
It was acknowledged, however, that the intention of considering the 
report was not to scrutinise the original principles included in the Plan 
(including the proposed areas for development), as these were 
approved at Full Council on 24th May 2018.  Explanation was given that 
the Inspector had increased the capacity of some of the village sites 
discussed for transparency, as some of the sites had gained planning 
permission or developers had indicated through the Examination that 
the site could yield a higher capacity.

The broader concern of how the need for increased growth in the 
District could conflict with the wellbeing of residents was also 
mentioned, including the possible reduction in green spaces and the 
impact of increased traffic on air quality. Officers related that the 
Council’s HRA Business Plan would support the sustainability of the 
development of our own housing stock, taking these factors into 
consideration. 

 The Main Modification to amend the text of paragraphs 2.16-2.18 of 
MM reference MM15 (Pgs. 7 – 10 of Schedule of Proposed Main 
Modifications) was raised, with one Member questioning the allowance 
for windfall sites within the Plan. Officers confirmed that the inclusion of 
a windfall allowance is commonplace as policy compliant sites which 
are not specifically identified in the plan will continue to come forward. 
Also commonplace in Local Plans is a housing land buffer, to provide 
choice and contingency but it was noted that the communication of the 
‘buffer’ could be clarified. 

 Members of the Committee thanked the officers involved in the 
development of the Local Plan, acknowledging the level of work and 
time that had been invested to date. During discussion, Members 
considered the implications of rejecting the Main Modifications at this 
stage in the process. Officers explained that if the Main Modifications 
were not approved, the Inspector would be unable to declare the Plan 
sound, and the Council would not have an up-to-date development plan 
for the Development Management Committee to use to inform their 
consideration of planning applications. One Member expressed the 
importance of having a Local Plan, in order for the Council to continue 
to have influence over how and where areas of land are developed in 
the South Kesteven area. It was noted that without a Local Plan, 
National Government Policy would apply, including presumption in 
favour of sustainable development, which would essentially prevent the 
Council from shaping the way our District is developed.

11



10

Members were then advised of the next stage in the process, should the Main 
Modifications be approved by Cabinet at its meeting on 10 September 2019. 
There would be a six week public consultation starting on 30 September 2019. 
The process for this would be guided by the Statement of Community 
Involvement, with the details being available on the Council website, at its 
offices and in district libraries. Public responses made to the consultation 
would be forwarded to the Inspector, who would then provide a final report.   

Members requested that a record of the Committee’s comments be circulated 
for reference before they were forwarded to Cabinet for consideration.

Action Point

 The record of comments relating to the Local Plan item to 
be circulated to Committee Members prior to Cabinet’s 
meeting on 10 September 2019

 

31. Deepings Special Expense Area

Members were invited to consider the report of the Cabinet Member for 
Finance regarding the review of the Deepings Special Expense Area. Any 
recommendations made by Members would be considered as part of the 
budget proposals for 2020/21. 

The Local Government Finance Act 1992 permits local authorities to create 
Special Expense Areas within the district to avoid double taxation. In other 
areas, expenses covered by a Special Expense Area levy (usually grounds 
maintenance costs) would be covered by the Parish or Town Council 
precepts. The tax levy for the Deepings Special Expense Area (SEA) was 
charged to residents of Market Deeping and Deeping St James. The only cost 
currently included in the SEA was the grounds maintenance for the Linchfield 
Road playing field. This created the equivalent charge of around £3 per 
annum for a Band D Council Tax charge property. 

Officers explained that costs needed to continue to be met in order for the 
maintenance of the playing field to be sustained. The Council would need to 
decide whether to keep charging the local residents through the SEA levy, or 
request that the costs be wholly met by the direct users of the field; The 
Deepings School and The Deepings Rugby Union Football Club and the 
Deepings Leisure Centre. It was noted that the current review of the Deepings 
SEA called for further consideration of the principle of using SEAs as a means 
to meet community facility costs across the District. Bourne, Grantham, 
Langtoft and Stamford also currently had SEAs.

12



11

Members were invited to make comments or ask any questions arising from 
their consideration of the report:

 Some Members expressed that they felt SEAs were no longer the most 
effective way of collecting the tax levy for the relevant areas. 

 One Member noted that the field was closed to the public throughout 
school periods, and therefore found it unfair to ask the residents to pay 
for a facility which they would potentially not be able to use. Similarly, 
during discussion other Members mentioned that as the playing field 
was used primarily by the school, the leisure centre and the rugby club, 
it needed to be carefully considered whether all residents in the area 
should continue to front the tax levy for these services.  

 Some Members pointed out that there were amenities available for 
public usage in all towns and villages, and as there were no restrictions 
in place to prevent residents from other areas making use of the 
provisions, the overall costs should be shared between all tax payers. 

 Concerns were raised as to the potential implications of asking 
stakeholders to meet the costs. Members expressed concern that the 
charge could deplete school resources, and could potentially  mean 
that the Rugby Union Football Club would find itself in the position of no 
longer being financially viable. 

 One of the Members for the Market and West Deeping Ward expressed 
concern as to the level of consultation which had been undertaken with 
stakeholders.

 It was noted that the Leisure Centre were benefitting from income 
received in relation to external bookings for the playing field.

 Members suggested that they be provided with further information 
detailing the facilities provided by each of the Special Expense Areas to 
allow the discussion of SEAs across the District to continue at a later 
date. It was recommended that the Cabinet Member for Finance 
consult with Parish Councillors in the Deepings area as well as the 
Finance team, to gather further information for the Committee to 
consider in order for it to make any recommendations. It was requested 
that this be carried out in sufficient time for any recommendations of the 
Committee to be considered during budget proposals for the following 
financial year.   

Action Point

 The Cabinet Member for Finance to consult with The 
Deepings Parish Councillors and Officers regarding the 
Deepings Special Expense area, and report back to the 
Committee with his findings

 Information detailing the facilities covered by Special 
Expense Areas in all areas across the District currently 
included in this tax levy

13



12

32. Work programme

Members noted that they wished to add the discussion regarding Special 
Expense Areas to the Work Programme to be discussed at a later date.

33. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent

There was no other business to be discussed.

34. Close of meeting

The meeting was closed at 13.37pm.

14



Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

19 November 2019

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

        

Finance update report - Quarter 2 2019/20

To inform Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee of the Council’s forecast 2019/20 financial position as at the end of September 2019. 
The report covers the following areas:

 General Fund Revenue Budget (including savings and income generation)

 Housing Revenue Account Budget

 Capital Programmes – General Fund and HRA 

Report Author

Claire Morgan, Senior Management Accountant

01476 406051

claire.morgan@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 4 November 2019

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance 6 November 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 7 November 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. The Finance Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee is asked to:

 Review and note the forecast 2019/20 outturn positions for Revenue, Savings 
and Income Generation and Capital as at the end of September 2019 and 
identify any variances that require further action.

15

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 Revenue Budget 2019/20 – General Fund 
1.1 The budget set by Budget Council on 1 March 2019 was £17.917m

The Revenue Budget is £19.846m as at the end of September 2019 with detail of the 
changes shown in the table below.

Date of Approval Revenue Budget amendment £’000
17,917

June 2019 2018/19 Budget carry forwards 704
June 2019 2018/19 Grants received 411
June 2019 Invest to Save – Online forms package 11
June 2019 Invest to Save - Finance review /advertising 

sponsorship/internet of things
62

June 2019 Leisure Centre Programme and Town Centre 
Management

441

June 2019 Crowdfunding 100
June 2019 Feasibility provision in respect of the Property 

Investment Policy
150

September 2019 Climate Change 50
TOTAL 19,846

1.2 The following table shows the forecast position as at 30 September 2019 of £388k.  There 
has been a positive reduction movement since quarter 1 (the forecast at that time was 
stated at £461k) due to a review of anticipated expenditure up to 31 March 2020, positive 
cost avoidance initiatives and a prudent forecast of the anticipated Business Rates pooling 
gain.  Having implemented positive steps to reduce the forecast it is important to ensure 
there is maintained focus to further reduce the forecast down to the approved budgets.  
The details are shown below and at Appendix A, B and C.

2019/20 
Original 
Budget

2019/20 
Current 
Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend 

2019/20
Forecast 

spend 
Forecast 
Variance 

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget

Description

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %
Commercial & Operations 5,457 7,250 2,268 7,349 99 1.4%

Growth 7,108 6,595 2,953 6,777 182 2.8%

Finance, Legal & Democratic 7,822 4,770 3,448 5,034 264 5.5%

Transformation & Change  3,701 2,434 3,958 257 6.9%

HRA Recharge (2,470) (2,470) (1,235) (2,470) 0 0.0%

Net Cost of Service 17,917 19,846 9,868 20,648 802 4.0%
Interest Payable and 
Receivable 100 100 (278) (378) ** 

Minimum Revenue Provision 308 308 308 0  

Depreciation (3,619) (3,619) (3,619) 0  

Net Budget Requirement 14,706 16,635 17,059 424  

Funding (16,389) (16,389) (16,639) (250)  

16



Transfers to/(from) earmarked 
reserves 1,683 (246) (32) 214  

Net Budget (Surplus)/Deficit 0 0 388 388  

1.3 The most significant variances to the budget are detailed below: There are several known 
Budget Pressures in 2019/20 included, some of which are continuing pressures from 
2018/19

Brief Explanation of Significant Variances £'000

The Council has a workforce efficiency* target which is calculated at 3.5% of the pay 
budgets on the general fund of £483k. This budget is forecast to zero and managed as 
part of the salary monitoring of vacancies within each service area. As at 30 September 
2019, the forecast underspend on salaries in the general fund is £371k

112

Car Parks - Annual assumed budget increases in income have not been matched by 
demand resulting in a forecast variance of £18k. Includes Wharf Road, Grantham £8k, 
Guildhall Street £2k, Watergate £3k and North Street £5k.

18

Markets - Tolls income forecast reduction of £30k is in line with current trader levels at 
Stamford market - circa 90% capacity (115 stalls), with Bourne (16 stalls), Grantham (40 
stalls) and the newly set up Market Deeping (15 stalls) markets all circa 80% capacity. 
This is 12% of the overall income budget.

30

HRA asset transfer – Transfer of HRA shops and garages to the general fund forecast to 
zero as sites will be developed as part of the new build programme £25k.

25

Development Management – The level of planning applications has reduced this year 
resulting in income from fees & charges underachieving. This has partially been mitigated 
by additional new income from Planning Performance Agreements.

50

Procurement savings – Savings of £50k are expected to be achieved by the end of 
2019/20. There has been positive work by the newly appointed Procurement Lead officer 
to review the current position and introduce positive steps to ensure that contractual 
arrangements are robust and that value for money is being achieved.  However, given the 
limited time remaining in the financial year, it is prudent to reduce the forecast savings. 

250

Transformation savings – Process automation schemes have been identified and are 
currently being progressed with a reduced forecast saving of £100k against the £200k 
target.  This is to reflect the part-year implementation of the savings with full year 
realisation anticipated from April 2020.

100

Channel Shift savings – Whist work is being progressed in this area, no savings will be 
realised during this financial year. A Customer Experience Strategy will be presented to 
Rural and Communities OSC which will set out the vision for customer engagement.

70

1.4 Appendix B provides detail of the current Revenue position for each Directorate.

Savings and Income Generation Update 2019/20
1.5 The savings and income generation target for 2019/20 is £1.921m

Savings and income generation of £1.275m is on target to be achieved and £646k is 
expected not to be achieved. This includes additional savings from in year service reviews 
of £99k which were not budgeted but will positively contribute towards the savings.

17



1.6 See Appendix C for the financial detail of Savings proposals.

2 Revenue Budget 2019/20 – Housing Revenue Account
2.1 The budget set by Council on 1 March 2019 was a surplus of £5.726m.  The surplus is fully 

utilised to fund future investment in stock growth and property maintenance.

2.2 The most significant variances to the budget are detailed below: 

Brief Explanation of Significant Variances £'000

Dwelling rents – As at 1 April 2019 the opening stock figure was lower than anticipated as a result of the 
increase in right to buy sales during 2018/19 (65 were sold compared to a budgeted figure of 39). During 
this financial year, sales are in accordance with budgeted levels (23 as at quarter 2).  Void rates have 
been budgeted at 1.5% but are currently averaging 1.8% resulting in a shortfall in collectible rent.

300

Total Expenditure – workforce efficiency* target forecast to zero creating a budget forecast overspend 158

Total Expenditure - Employee savings from various in year vacancies and reduced hours.  Current 
vacancies are 4.0 FTE

(129)

Repairs & Maintenance – Expected increase in salaries recharged to capital projects (£60k) and repairs 
works rechargeable in nature (£40k)

(100)

Repairs & Maintenance – Premises maintenance costs expected to increase by 3%, work is reactive in 
nature and spend dependant on the repairs required.

30

Supervision and management Special – Increase in service charge of Tunstall system.  This is being 
appraised as part of a full sheltered housing review. 

20

Supervision and management General – Increase in legal costs due to use of external legal services and 
ongoing complex case.

23

Supervision and management Special – savings in grounds maintenance costs for the garden 
maintenance scheme

(50)

TOTAL 252

2.3 Appendix D provides detail of the current HRA revenue position.

3 Capital Programmes 2019/20
General Fund Programme

3.1 The current 2019/20 General Fund Capital Budget is £18.116m. The table below shows a 
summary of the movements:

Date of Approval Revenue Budget amendment £’000
14,269

June 2019 2018/19 Budget carry forwards 3,847
TOTAL 18,116

3.2 The most significant variances to the budget are detailed below:

Scheme Brief Explanation of Significant Variances £'000

LED TV screen Scheme is no longer progressing as it is not deemed to be economically viable (103)

Pool Car Keyless 
Entry

Scheme is no longer progressing as it is not deemed to be economically viable, 
alternative options are being explored to utilise this budget in the service area (14)

Payment 
Receipting System

The replacement payment receipting system includes the opportunity to provide 
customers with modern self-serve terminals in each of the area offices.  This 14

18



supports self-serve and improves the customer offer.   The additional spend will be 
offset by future efficiency savings.

Wyndham Park 
Improvements 
(HLF)

Retention costs will be payable in 19/20. £36K of this cost will be funded from HLF 
grant and the remaining £6k will be funded from the Grantham SEA reserve. 42

Vehicle 
Replacement 
Programme

Due to the extension of the successful food waste service, a value for money 
review has confirmed that procuring 2 food waste vehicles (£34k) is more cost 
effective than hiring.  The funding is to be met from the approved external funding.

34

Public Realm

Variations to the original tender contract - final value now agreed (infrastructure, 
materials and design and necessary unforeseen costs relating to foundation 
works), Separation and associated works to the Civic Suite including replacement 
of boiler system.

260

Commercial 
Investment & 
Regeneration

A number of sites have been identified for potential regeneration and investment 
some of which have been commissioned to feasibility. To date one acquisition has 
been completed.

(9,350)

 Other variances 70
TOTAL  (9,047)

HRA Capital Programme
3.3 The current 2019/20 HRA Capital Budget is £16.579m. The table below shows a summary 

of the movements:

Date of Approval Revenue Budget amendment £’000
16,489

June 2019 2018/19 Budget carry forward 90
TOTAL 16,579

3.4 The most significant variances to the budget are detailed below:

Scheme Brief Explanation of Significant Variances £'000
New Build Properties Forecast spend has been re-profiled to reflect the commencement dates of the 

various schemes with 4 specific schemes expected to complete this financial 
year.

(3,300)

Stock Growth & 
Acquisitions

Forecast spend has been profiled based on current identified properties and 
sites.  Spend is dependant to suitable sites being available.

(2,730)

Housing System 
Enhancements (ICT)

The residual budget of £100k is likely to be incurred in 2020/21 due to ongoing 
dialogue with prospective suppliers.  The request for slippage will be presented 
as part of the budget setting proposals.

(150)

Sewage Maintenance Estimated cost of works expected to be lower than anticipated resulting in a 
forecast saving.

(25)

 Other variances 7
TOTAL  (6,198)

3.5 Appendix E provides detail of the current Capital programmes.

4 Reasons for the Recommendation (s)
4.1 Committee Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the authority, as 

effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line 

19



with the budget and are targeted towards the Council's priorities. Monitoring enables the 
early identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action.

4.2 This report provides an overview of the forecast 2019/20 financial position for the Council 
and focuses on the position as at the end of September 2019.

5 Financial Implications 
5.1 These are included in the report.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance

6 Legal and Governance Implications 
6.1 As part of good governance, it is important members are kept updated in respect of the 

financial position of the Council expenditure during the course of the year.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Interim Head of Legal

7 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
7.1 Not applicable.

8 Risk and Mitigation
8.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks have been 

identified.

9 Community Safety Implications 
9.1 Not applicable

10 Other Implications (where significant) 
10.1 Not applicable

11 Background Papers
11.1 Determination of Budget 2019/20 and indicative budgets to 21/22 – General Fund, Housing 

Revenue Account and associated Capital Programmes Report 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22386/2019-
20%20Budget%20report.pdf

11.2 Outturn Position 2018/19 report 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23133/Outturn%20Report%202018-
19%20Final.pdf

11.3 Finance Update Report – Quarter 1 2019/20

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23807/Budget%20Monitoring%20Qtr
%201%20Report%20-%20FORMATTED.pdf

12 Appendices
12.1 Appendix A – General Fund Forecast Position 2019/20 - Quarter 2

12.2 Appendix B – General Fund Revenue Variance Analysis

12.3 Appendix C – 2019/20 Savings & Income Generation – Quarter 2

20

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23133/Outturn%20Report%202018-19%20Final.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23133/Outturn%20Report%202018-19%20Final.pdf


12.4 Appendix D – HRA Forecast Position 2019/20 – Quarter 2

12.5 Appendix E – General Fund Capital Programme 2019/20 – Quarter 2

12.6 Appendix F – HRA Capital Programme 2019/20 – Quarter 2

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not required

Previously Considered by: Growth 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Not applicable

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  Not applicable

21



This page is intentionally left blank 

22



APPENDIX A

GENERAL FUND REVENUE SUMMARY 2019/20 
CURRENT POSITION AS AT SEPTEMBER 2019

2019/20 
Original 
Budget

2019/20 
Current 
Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend 

2019/20
Forecast 

spend 
Forecast 
Variance 

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget

Description

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %
Commercial & Operations 5,457 7,250 2,268 7,349 99 1.4%

Growth 7,108 6,595 2,953 6,777 182 2.8%

Finance, Legal & Democratic 7,822 4,770 3,448 5,034 264 5.5%

Transformation & Change  3,701 2,434 3,958 257 6.9%

HRA Recharge (2,470) (2,470) (1,235) (2,470) 0 0.0%

Net Cost of Service 17,917 19,846 9,868 20,648 802 4.0%
Interest Payable and 
Receivable 100 100 (278) (378) ** 

Minimum Revenue Provision 308 308 308 0  

Depreciation (3,619) (3,619) (3,619) 0  

Net Budget Requirement 14,706 16,635 17,059 424  

Funding and Resources:      

Council Tax (7,475) (7,475) (7,475) 0  

Section Grants (118) (118) (118) 0  
Retained Business Rates, s31 
Grant & Pooling Gain (5,154) (5,154) (5,404) (250)  

New Homes Bonus (1,957) (1,957) (1,957) 0  

Rural Grant (295) (295) (295) 0  
Collection Fund 
(Surplus)/Deficit (1,390) (1,390) (1,390) 0  

Total Funding (16,389) (16,389) (16,639) (250)  
Transfers to/(from) earmarked 
reserves 1,683 (246) (32) 214  

Net Budget (Surplus)/Deficit 0 0 388 388  

** Forecast updated due to the profiling of borrowing requirements

23



This page is intentionally left blank

24



APPENDIX B

General Fund Revenue Significant Variance Analysis as at September 2019

COMMERCIAL & OPERATIONS

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Net Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend

2019/20
Forecast 

spend

Forecast 
VarianceService Area RAG 

rating

£'000 £'000 £'000 £’000 £'000 £'000 %

Building Control Green 872,400 (794,750) 77,650 (132,284) 51,100 (26,550) -34.2%
Commercial & 
Operations Management Amber 212,800  212,800 114,913 229,000 16,200 7.6%

Community Resilience Amber 432,850 (38,400) 394,450 218,339 391,500 (2,950) -0.7%

Corporate Operations Green 3,403,650 (1,735,000) 1,668,650 1,336,708 1,670,600 1,950 0.1%

Environmental Amber 1,103,600 (233,000) 870,600 (409,390) 841,000 (29,600) -3.4%

Licensing   Amber 135,950 (294,800) (158,850) (213,846) (154,700) 4,150 -2.6%

Street Scene   Amber 5,963,691 (1,779,041) 4,184,650 1,353,196 4,320,200 135,550 3.2%

TOTAL  12,124,941 (4,874,991) 7,249,950 2,267,636 7,348,700 98,750 1.4%

Brief Explanation of Significant Variances                            £'000

Workforce Efficiency* 186

Environmental – Disabled Facilities Grants -  capitalisation of salaries (58)

Environmental – Programme of flood prevention works for 2019/20 has resulted in a forecast underspend (14)

Environmental - Fewer Fixed Penalty Notices than originally anticipated being issued.  Car parking enforcement moved in house 
for October 2019 which will offset the cost of staffing across the enforcement service as a whole and represents a savings against 
the previous enforcement contract

36

Corporate Operations – Car Parks - Annual assumed budget increases in income have not been matched by demand. 18

Corporate Operations - Bourne Cicle festival expenditure forecast overspend increased to £87k, offset by sponsorship of (£26k), 
£10k of remaining reserve funding and a contribution from Invest SK of £50k.

0

Corporate Operations – Lease renewal at Council offices resulting in additional unbudgeted income (34)

Street Scene – Pool Cars- The capital scheme for a keyless entry system is no longer proceeding. The in year revenue budget is 
therefore not required although alternative options are being explored to utilise this budget in the service area

(26)

TOTAL 108

GROWTH

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Net Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend

2019/20
Forecast 

spend

Forecast 
VarianceService Area RAG 

rating

£'000 £'000 £'000 £’000 £'000 £'000 %

25



Arts Centres Amber 2,467,550 (1,166,750) 1,300,800 237,564 1,335,800 35,000 2.7%

Deliver SK Green 59,000  59,000 39,250 59,000 0 0%
Development 
Management Red 1,348,450 (1,407,100) (58,650) 169,536 87,200 145,850 -248.7%

Growth Management Amber 272,950  272,950 142,178 280,400 7,450 2.7%

Housing Amber 920,750 (310,250) 610,500 178,286 661,437 50,937 8.3%

Invest SK Green 1,714,750 (303,200) 1,411,550 1,470,692 1,411,550 0 0%

Leisure Centres Amber 2,440,550 (147,150) 2,293,400 387,044 2,310,400 17,000 0.7%

Markets Red 293,950 (273,700) 20,250 60,613 49,050 28,800 142.2%

Planning Policy Green 663,250 (40,000) 623,250 366,286 564,000 (59,250) -9.5%

Property Development Green 1,251,750 (1,189,650) 62,100 (98,941) 18,300 (43,800) -70.5%

TOTAL  11,432,950 (4,837,800) 6,595,150 2,952,508 6,777,137 181,987 2.8%

Brief Explanation of Significant Variances                                                                                                                                                      £'000

Workforce Efficiency target * 107

Arts Centres - Changes to the catering provision at Stamford Arts Centre has reduced the forecast by £15k whilst lease 
negotiations are undertaken.

15

Land Charges – Reduced forecast of search fees in relation to information obtained by LCC and the current level of searches. (29)

Land Charges – Reduced number of searches being undertaken compared to previous year resulting in under achieved income. 20

Markets - Tolls income forecast is in line with continued capacity levels at Stamford market - circa 90%, with Bourne, Grantham 
and the newly set up Market Deeping markets all circa 80%.

30

Development Management – The level of planning applications has reduced this year resulting in income from fees & charges 
underachieving. This has partially been mitigated by additional new income from Planning Performance Agreement 

50

Development Management – Due to a number of additional vacancies during the year, further agency costs will be incurred to 
undertake specific project work. These are to be funded from grant monies received in previous years

90

Planning Policy - Vacant Neighbourhood Planning Officer 0.8 FTE and Senior Planning Policy Officer 1 FTE (59)

Property Development – Transfer of HRA shops and garages to the general fund forecast to zero as sites will be developed as part 
of the new build programme

25

Property Development – A 1 FTE surveyor role has recently been appointed to following a 6-month vacancy having resulted in an   
underspend of (£21k)

(21)

Property Development – The feasibility costs forecast has been reduced whilst further potential acquisitions are investigated. The 
approved reserve movement will also be reduced.

(90)

Property Development – Review being undertaken on future use of recent site acquisition. Currently there are increased security 
costs and no source of income

77

TOTAL 215

FINANCE, LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Net 
Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend

2019/20
Forecast 

spend

Forecast 
VarianceService Area RAG 

rating

£'000 £'000 £'000 £’000 £'000 £'000 %

Finance Green 2,223,985 (507,700) 1,716,285 1,322,770 1,677,959 (38,326) -2.2%

26



Benefits Green 28,662,917 (28,886,600) (223,683) (63,016) (316,127) (92,444) -41.3%

Corporate Red 1,623,350 (98,550) 1,524,800 945,738 1,923,842 399,042 26.2%

Legal & Democratic Green 1,905,950 (268,200) 1,637,750 949,735 1,636,448 (1,302) -0.1%

Revenue Services Green 650,999 (536,400) 114,599 292,775 111,877 (2,722) -2.4%

TOTAL  35,067,201 (30,297,450) 4,769,751 3,448,002 5,033,999 264,248 5.5%

Brief Explanation of Significant Variance                                                                                                                                                        £ '000

Workforce Efficiency target * 108

Finance – In year service review savings (50)

Benefits – Admin subsidy grant income being received at an increased level to the budget (45)

Benefits – In year benefit assessor vacancies – 4 FTE.  These posts will be reviewed following the implementation of the virtual 
worker process automation

(81)

Corporate – Agency spend efficiency saving to be monitored with the workforce efficiency target 75

Corporate – Procurement Savings of £50k are expected to be achieved by the end of 2019/20. This is against the target of £300k 250

Corporate – Shared services forecast reduced following cessation of secondments 34

Corporate – No further subscription savings are due to be realised during the year. 35

TOTAL 326

TRANSFORMATION & CHANGE

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Net 
Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend

2019/20
Forecast 

spend

Forecast 
VarianceService Area RAG rating

£'000 £'000 £'000 £’000 £'000 £'000 %

Customer Services Amber 632,400 (59,850) 572,550 264,448 622,250 49,700 8.7%

ICT Services Amber 1,569,199 (91,200) 1,477,999 1,154,983 1,537,863 59,864 4.1%
Organisational 
Development Amber 445,550 (19,200) 426,350 226,921 454,550 28,200 6.6%

Reputation, Consultation & 
Communications Amber 644,600 (7,500) 637,100 302,618 682,300 45,200 7.1%

Transformation Amber 579,150 (10,000) 587,150 485,071 661,000 73,850 12.6%

TOTAL  3,888,899 (187,750) 3,701,149 2,434,041 3,957,963 256,814 6.9%

Brief Explanation of Major Variances                                                                                                                                                                                           £'000

Workforce efficiency target * 88

Reputation, Consultation & Communications – Print room efficiency savings -The authority will retain some print capability. However, the amount of 
space required for this has been reduced and opportunities are being explored to reutilise the space and either reduce operating overheads or 
generate a commercial income 

40

ICT Services – In year vacancies including an internal secondment has resulted in an under spend of (£55k) (55)

ICT Services - Corporate licence fees which were not budgeted 72

ICT Services – Efficiency savings in respect of printers will not be realised in 2019/20 due to the number of printers still required although usage levels 
are being reviewed with service areas 

20

27



Transformation – Process automation schemes have been identified and are currently being progressed with a reduced forecast saving of £100k 
against the £200k target

100

Transformation – Channel Shift savings - Whist work is being progressed in this area, no savings will be realised during this financial year 70

Transformation – Business Support Team inception has created in year savings of (£49k) (49)

TOTAL 286

28



This page is intentionally left blank

29



APPENDIX C
SAVINGS AND INCOME GENERATION SUMMARY AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2019

DETAILS 19/20 
BUDGET FORECAST FORECAST 

VARIANCE RAG STATUS*

 £’000 £'000 £'000 19/20
GREEN WASTE COLLECTION CHARGE (58) (58) 0 Green
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH INCREASES (6) (6) 0 Green
COMMERCIAL WASTE (net) (77) (23) 54 Red
HRA - TRANSFER OF NON HOUSING ASSETS (25) 0 25 Red
VALUATION ADVICE - RECOVERY OF ANNUAL COST (15) (15) 0 Amber
PLANNING POLICY & HERITAGE SUPPORT ADVICE TO PARTNERS (18) (18) 0 Green
PLANNING FEES INCREASE (176) (156) 20 Amber
IDOX SHARED SERVICES (40) (40) 0 Green
LOCAL LOTTERY IN LIEU OF EXISTING GRANTS (10) (10) 0 Amber
SHARED SERVICE OPPORTUNITIES (50) (16) 34 Red
LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC STAFF REDUCTION (37) (37) 0 Green
RESTRUCTURE SAVINGS (300) (300) 0 Green
REDUCTION OF MULTI-FUNCTIONAL DEVICES (20) 0 20 Red
CORPORATE PROCUREMENT SAVINGS (300) (50) 250 Red
CORPORATE USE OF AGENCY STAFF (75) 0 75 Red
CORPORATE SUBSCRIPTIONS (50) (15) 35 Red
CUSTOMER SERVICES COST REDUCTION (60) (60) 0 Green
ICT STAFF REDUCTION (40) (40) 0 Green
ICT LICENCE SAVINGS (20) 0 20 Red
CORPORATE INCREASE OF VACANCY FACTOR (60) (60) 0 Green
REMOVAL OF ADMIN SUPPORT (72) (32) 40 Amber
COMMUNICATIONS ADMIN ASSISTANT (10) (10) 0 Green
TRANSFORMATION PROCESS AUTOMATION (200) (100) 100 Red
CHANNEL SHIFT SAVINGS (70) 0 70 Red
MEDICAL INSURANCE SAVINGS (20) (18) 2 Green
CORPORATE PROCUREMENT - LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT (70) (70) 0 Green
COMMUNICATIONS REDUCTION IN SUPPLIES & SERVICES BUDGETS (32) (32) 0 Green
COMMUNICATIONS SAVINGS CENTRALISATION (10) (10) 0 Amber
SERVICE REVIEWS IN YEAR (99) (99) Green

(1,921) (1,275) 646

*RAG status
Red - unlikely to achieve budget
Amber - showing signs of being unlikely to achieve budget but under review
Green – on target to achieve budget

30



31



This page is intentionally left blank

32



APPENDIX D

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT SUMMARY 2019/20 
CURRENT POSITION AS AT SEPTEMBER 2019

Description
2019/20 
Original 
Budget

2019/20 
Current 
Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend

2019/20
Forecast 

spend
Forecast 
Variance

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
INCOME      
Dwelling Rents (24,408) (24,408) (11,863) (24,108) 300
Non-Dwelling Rents (319) (319) (156) (323) (4)
Charges for Services and 
Facilities (662) (662) (339) (685) (23)

Other Income (66) (66) (33) (66) 0
TOTAL INCOME (25,455) (25,455) (12,391) (25,182) 273
      
EXPENDITURE      
Repairs and Maintenance 8,110 8,110 3,133 8,037 (73)
Supervision and Management - 
General

3,201 3,207 848 3,294 87

Supervision and Management - 
Special

1,326 1,321 444 1,323 2

HRA share of Corporate and 
Democratic Costs

421 421 0 421 0

Depreciation and Impairment of 
Fixed Assets 3,620 3,620 0 3,620 0

Debt Management Expenses 35 35 0 35 0
Provision for bad debts 245 245 0 245 0
Other Expenditure (Pension 
Deficit) 272 272 97 266 (6)

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 17,230 17,230 4,522 17,241 10
      
NET COST OF HRA SERVICES (8,225) (8,225) (7,869) (7,941) 283
Interest Payable and Similar 
Charges 2,718 2,718 1,371 2,718 0

Interest and Investment Income (219) (219) 0 (219) 0
      
DEFICIT (SURPLUS) FOR THE 
YEAR ON THE HRA (5,726) (5,726) (6,498) (5,442) 283

33



This page is intentionally left blank 

34



APPENDIX E

GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME SUMMARY 2019/20 
CURRENT POSITION AS AT SEPTEMBER 2019

Capital Scheme
2019/20 
Original 
Budget

2019/20 
Current 
Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend

2019/20
Forecast 

spend
Forecast 
Variance

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
COMMERCIAL      
Wheelie Bin Replacements 100 100 57 100 0
Pool Vehicles 0 12 10 10 (2)
Disabled Facilities Grant 797 797 461 800 3
Street Scene Vehicle Procurement 310 310 82 310 0
Vehicle Electric Charging Points 0 39 0 39 0
Vehicle Replacement Programme 705 705 739 739 34
CCTV Matrix 23 23 22 23 0
Pool Car Keyless Entry 14 14 0 0 (14)
Trade Waste Bins 24 24 27 32 8
GROWTH      
Grantham Christmas Lights - SEA 40 40 0 40 0
Car Parking Infrastructure 50 50 0 50 0
Market Stall Covers 29 29 0 29 0
Tourism Signage 50 100 48 100 0
QE Park Car Park 30 31 32 31 0
Shop Front Scheme 130 130 141 141 11
St Peter's Hill Development 0 1,436 1,419 1,470 34
Wyndham Park Improvements (HLF) 0 0 42 42 42
Local Authority Controlled Company 1,400 1,680 0 1,680 0
Public Realm 0 1,315 1,356 1,575 260
LED TV Screen 103 103 0 0 (103)
Guildhall Arts Centre - Projector 15 15 14 15 0
Meres - Gas Boiler 65 65 0 65 0
Dysart Park Improvements 55 55 52 52 (3)
Invest & Regeneration 10,000 10,000 428 660 (9,340)
Wyndham Park Car Park 29 28 23 28 0
University Fit-Out 0 680 31 680 0
Property Acquisition 0 0 6 6 6
RESOURCES      
Payment Receipting System 40 40 54 54 14
Financial System Upgrade 0 0 3 3 3
TRANSFORMATION & CHANGE      
Uninterruptible Power Supply Replacement 0 15 0 15 0
ICT Infrastructure 65 85 5 85 0
Server & Storage Infrastructure 115 115 0 115 0
Digital Services Compliance 80 80 0 80 0
      
TOTAL 14,269 18,116 5,052 9,069 (9,047)

35



This page is intentionally left blank 

36



APPENDIX F

HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME SUMMARY 2019/20 
CURRENT POSITION AS AT SEPTEMBER 2019

Capital Scheme
2019/20 
Original 
Budget

2019/20 
Current 
Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend

2019/20
Forecast 

spend
Forecast 
Variance

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
New Build Properties 6,800 6,800 26 3,500 (3,300)
Stock Growth & Acquisitions 5,000 5,000 304 2,270 (2,730)
Kitchens & Bathrooms Programme 1,000 1,000 937 1,000 0
Roofing 1,200 1,200 1,262 1,200 0
Electrical Rewires 300 300 216 300 0
Replacement Door Programme 100 100 43 100 0
External Wall Insulation 0 0 5 5 5
Communal Rooms 70 70 62 70 0
Sewage Maintenance 100 100 37 75 (25)
Heating and Ventilation 1,514 1,514 1,132 1,514 0
Repairs Vehicles 155 245 265 247 2
Housing System Enhancements 250 250 0 100 (150)
      
TOTAL 16,489 16,579 4,289 10,381 (6,198)

37



This page is intentionally left blank



Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee
19th November 2019

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke
The Leader of the Council

        

Performance reporting for quarter 2 for the financial 
year 2019/20
This paper sets out performance reporting for quarter 2 for the financial year 2019/20. It outlines 
the progression of the changes to the internal performance framework and explains how 
performance of the council services will be reported and managed in line with the corporate aims 
of the organisation.

Report Author

Clare Milner/Ben Russell, Performance Leads

 01476 406463

c.milner@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Competitiveness Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Elaine Pepper, Head of Organisational Development 28 October 2019

Approved by: Lee Sirdifield, Strategic Director, Transformation and 
Change 1 November 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 4 November 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. Notes the content of the report and support the ongoing transformation of 
performance management.

39

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 At the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on 5 September 2019 quarter 1 

performance results were reviewed. An update was also provided on the new approach to 
performance reporting, moving from the current retrospective reporting system to a 
business intelligence software programme to the source data which will allow services to 
be more data driven.

1.2 This report details the performance of the council’s current key corporate indicators for 
quarter 2 (July, August & September 2019). It also provides an update on how 
performance information will be presented to the committee in the future.

1.3 Appendix 1 shows the current key performance indicators. An explanation of each 
measure is provided to give context to the figures.

1.4 During quarter 2, three performance indicators did not achieve target:

 CP05 percentage of Council Tax collected has a status of amber, indicating it is slightly 
below target for this period. This is due to an increase in the number of Universal Credit 
claims. This affects council tax support and results in a change in the date to the council 
tax payment, often moving the payment to the following month.

 CP06 percentage of Non-domestic Rates Collected is under target by 1.29%. The 
Revenues Team have highlighted a non-domestic property that is subject to a change 
by the Valuation Office and as such has an outstanding balance. The option to pay over 
12 months rather than 10 is also seeing the profile of payments during the year vary.

 CP10 the number of apprenticeships hosted stands at nine apprentices at the end of 
September. Human Resources have confirmed there are six new apprentices due to 
start in October which will meet the government target of 15.

1.5 As shown in Appendix 1, most indicators are meeting or exceeding their targets. Of 
interest are:

 CP14 Occupancy rates of retail units in town centres shows within this quarter there has 
been a minor increase in vacancy. This is due to the towns of Grantham, Stamford and 
Bourne seeing an increase in unoccupied units. In total, this bring the vacant units to 72 
resulting in a total occupancy across 4 towns at 91.8%. The vacancy increase has been 
due to Thomas Cook who ceased trading in September and William Hill who agreed in 
July 2019 to close 700 shops resulting in both Grantham and Bourne units being closed. 
Appendix 2 provides more detail on the occupancy rates in each market town.

 CP21 percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting has 
seen an increase and is meeting target for this period. This can be largely accounted for 
by a seasonal trend in green bin use.

New Performance Framework
1.6 Following the committee meeting in September 2019 a performance workshop was held to 

give members the opportunity to consider how measures are defined and what information 
can be supplied to give appropriate context. 

40



1.7 The workshop took place in October 2019. Several measures were analysed against the 
committee’s remit. Members agreed an initial set of performance measures but highlighted 
that these will change over time. 

1.8 The performance officers are continuing to work with service areas to understand the 
operational data that will populate the dashboards. 

1.9 The new performance measures will be reported upon in early 2020. Appendix 3 and 4 
show two revised performance measures: Rents and Planning. The dashboards show the 
measure, trends, benchmarking information (where available) and associated impacts.

1.10 Work is now underway to build further measures as agreed at the workshop. These 
include: 

 Revenue collections

 Waste collections

 Customer feedback/complaints

2 Financial Implications
2.1 There are no specific financial comments arising from the report. The development of the 

new performance management framework will continue to be funded from budgeted 
resources. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Gillian Goddard, Senior Financial Accountant

3 Legal and Governance Implications 
3.1 Regular reporting on agreed performance dashboards is to be welcomed from a 

governance point of view, as it provides a transparent mechanism for reporting on 
performance.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Head of Legal Services 

4 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
4.1 There are no foreseen issues relating to equality and diversity or safeguarding resulting 

from this report. Any issues that do arise relating to individual items will be addressed as 
required.

5 Risk and Mitigation
5.1 The contents of this report do not expose the authority to any additional risks.

6 Community Safety Implications 
6.1 None.

7 Other Implications (where significant) 
7.1 None.

8 Background Papers
8.1 None.

9 Appendices

41



9.1 Appendix 1 – Performance Data: Quarter 2 2019/20

9.2 Appendix 2 – Occupancy rates of retail units spilt by town centre

9.3 Appendix 3 – Rents new performance dashboard

9.4 Appendix 4 – Planning new performance dashboard 

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not applicable

Previously Considered by: Finance, 
Economic Development and Corporate 
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee

5 September 2019

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  Not applicable

42



1

Quarter 2 2019/2020

July 2019 August 2019 September 2019Current 
RAG Performance Measure Description Frequency

Value Target Value Target Value Target
Months 850 749 753CP01 Number of households on 

the councils housing register 
assessed as having a housing 
need.

This measure shows the number of households assessed as having a housing need and placed in the top four priority bands of 
the housing register (Emergency Band, plus bands 1, 2 and 3). Households allocated to Bands 4 and 5 are not considered to be 
in “need”.

Quarters 49CP02 Number of households living 
in temporary accommodation This measure outlines the number of households living in temporary accommodation on the night of 30th October 2019.

Half Years 110,618,948
CP04 Total rateable value of 
businesses in the district The figure of 110,618,948 is the total combined rateable value based on the 4,585 hereditaments (business properties) that 

appear on the commercial rating list as at the end of September. 

Months 38.34% 38.85% 47.49% 48.25% 56.74% 57.60%
CP05 % of Council Tax collected This measure outlines the cumulative proportion of Council Tax collected for the year against the expected amount. This is

currently showing amber indicating it is below target for this period.

Months 40.27% 41.60% 49.12% 50.10% 57.81% 59.10%
CP06 % of Non-domestic Rates 
Collected This measure outlines the cumulative proportion of Non-domestic Rates collected for the year against the expected amount. 

NNDR is below target at the end of the quarter by 1.29%.

Months 32.85% 30.45% 40.38% 41.05% 49.98% 49.35%
CP07 % of Rent collected This measure outlines the cumulative proportion of Rent collected for the year against the expected amount. Quarter 2 target 

has been achieved.

Months 94.97% 95.55% 95.36%
CP08 % of planning applications 
approved The percentage of applications approved remains high. This shows only a small percentage of planning applications are 

refused, encouraging development within the district and promoting the growth strategy of SK.

Months 87.50% 60.00% 87.50% 60.00% 88.89% 60.00%
CP09 Processing of planning 
applications: Major applications 
(in a timely manner)

Major applications are those for more than 10 dwellings or over 1,000 sqm non-residential floorspace. Performance of 88% is 
excellent, exceeding the national target of 60% by a significant amount. Due to the relatively small number of major 
applications determined, the performance on these applications can vary by a large degree.

43

A
ppendix 1



2

Current 
RAG Performance Measure Description Frequency

July 2019 August 2019 September 2019
Value Target Value Target Value Target

Months 77.48% 65.00% 76.81% 65.00% 75.78% 65.00%
CP10 Processing of planning 
applications: Minor applications
(in a timely manner)

Minor applications are those for less than 10 dwellings or below a floorspace of 1,000 sqm for non-residential development. It 
includes applications for change of use. This is a good result which significantly exceeds the national target of 65%. It has been 
achieved despite a reduction in staffing levels and a backlog of administrative work. SKDC receives a higher number of minor 
applications than other authorities who deal with a similar overall number of applications.

Months 90.09% 80.00% 87.88% 80.00% 87.03% 80.00%
CP11 Processing of planning 
applications: Other applications
(in a timely manner)

Other applications include householders, listed building consent and advertisement consent applications. The performance 
achieved has been good, exceeding the national performance target of 80%. It has been achieved despite a reduction in 
staffing levels, training of new inexperienced staff and a backlog of administrative work.

Months 328 370 455

Quarters 455CP12 Average time taken to 
process planning applications - 
Majors

Major applications are those which exceed 10 dwellings in size or have a non-residential floorspace of more than 1,000 sqm. 
There have been some significant applications determined during this period which, by their nature, have taken longer to 
assess and bring to Planning Committee for a decision. Some applications were dealt with by officer who has now left the 
authority with a resulting lag as new consultants have taken over the work.

Months 88 78 87

Quarters 87

CP13 Average time taken to 
process planning applications - 
Non-majors

Non-major applications are those which include householder, minor and other types of applications. The trend for average time 
to determine non-major applications has been increasing due to staff shortages and increase in workload in both the support 
and professional planning teams. The time taken to register and validate applications has been longer over the period due to a 
backlog in the support team. Several planners have recently left the authority and although they have been replaced by 
consultants, this has still placed pressure on remaining staff which has affected the length of time taken to determine non-major 
applications.

Quarters 91.83% 90%
CP14 Occupancy rates of retail 
units in town centres

Within this quarter, there has been a minor increase in vacancy. This is due to the towns of Grantham, Stamford and Bourne 
seeing an increase in unoccupied units. In total, this brings the vacant units to 72 resulting in a total occupancy across 4 towns 
at 91.8%. 

Quarters 396
CP15 Number of vacant business 
properties This measure records the current number of vacant business properties across the district. There has been no change since Q4

of 2018/19, and the number has remained relatively static for the last 5 reporting periods.

44



3

Current 
RAG Performance Measure Description Frequency

July 2019 August 2019 September 2019
Value Target Value Target Value Target

Months 98.01% 97.00% 98.02% 97.00% 98.13% 97.00%CP16 % of Food establishments in 
the area achieving 3 (generally 
satisfactory) or above in food 
hygiene rating scheme

Over 98% of food establishments are broadly compliant with food hygiene law. This is equivalent to achieving a score of 3 or 
more for those premises rated under the Food Hygiene Rating Scheme.

Quarters 90.14%

CP17 % of streets that meet clean 
streets standard

This indicator measures the cleanliness of the streets based on the amount of litter, detritus and graffiti on the street. It is assessed
by the Street Scene supervisors and graded as A, B, C or D with A being very clean and D being unacceptable. A&B count as
having met the clean street standard. During quarter two 71 streets were assessed in the district. Seven of these fell into a 
category C in the clean streets standard. No streets fell into category D.

Months 313 406 481
CP18 Number of fly tipping 
incidents received This measure indicates the number of reports of fly tipping that are made. The monthly figure is cumulative, each month 

showing the total numbers of incidents reported since April 2019. This year the figure reported is slightly lower than last year 
which stood at 506 incidents September 2018.

Quarters 9 14
CP19 Number of apprenticeships 
hosted within SKDC This measure is a simple count of the number of apprentices employed by South Kesteven District Council. We have 9 

apprenticeships currently at SKDC, with a further 6 due to commence in the next quarter. This will meet the national target.

Months  43.49% 45% 44.35% 45% 43.97% 45%CP21 Percentage of household 
waste sent for reuse, recycling and 
composting (formerly NI 192)

This indicator measures the percentage of household waste that has not been sent to the energy from waste plant (non-
recyclables). The amount of waste that has been recycled has increased this period and is achieving the target. 

 

45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Occupancy rates of retail units by town centre

Quarter 2 Town Total 
Shops

Total 
Vacant

% of 
Vacant 
Units

Occupancy Notes

Oct-19 Grantham 306 48 15.69% 84.31% The Town of Grantham continues to run a higher rate of vacancy 
compared to the other District towns with a total of 46 vacant. The 
current vacancy rate being 15% with a total of 306 shops in and 
around the central town area. In particular, the areas which are 
running higher occupancy are: Market Place / Westgate, The 
George Centre and the High Street. In this last quarter, notable 
closures include Thomas Cook.

Oct-19 Stamford 332 12 3.61% 96.39% The Stamford area has seen an increase of vacancy with only 12 
vacant. In a town with a total of 332 shops this results in a 3.6% 
vacancy rate. The town centre in Stamford still retains good 
footfall with the quality of shops which are within the town centre.

Oct-19 Bourne 164 11 6.71% 93.29% Bourne has seen an increase of one over the last quarter. The 
clusters of vacancy are predominantly on North Street and some 
reside in West Street. Rutland Sport have recently closed as have 
William Hill which mirrors the closure in Grantham.

Oct-19 Market Deeping 79 1 1.27% 98.73% Market Deeping continues to run low vacancy rates with only one 
shop vacant. In total this is positive for the town. The continued 
housing and residential growth of the town should have a positive 
effect on the town centre footfall.

47

A
ppendix 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



28/10/2019 Page 1

1/1

Total Planning
Applications in Quarter 2
(July-Sep 2019)

278
Planning Applications
Decisions (Q2)

0

100

200

300

Appro…
condit…

Refused Appro…
without
condit…

263

14
1

Processing of Major Planning Application Within
Time

Ty
pe Major 11%

89%

Within time N Y

Processing of Minor Planning Applications Within
Time

Ty
pe Minor 24%

76%

Within time N Y

Processing of Other Planning Applications Within
Time

Ty
pe Other 13%

87%

Within time N Y

New Homes Built in SKDC (April to  September 2019)

Grantham : 149

Bourne : 95

Stamford : 81

Larger Village : 52

Deepings : 24

Smaller Village : 8

© 2019 HERE, © 2019 Microsoft Corporation© 2019 HERE, © 2019 Microsoft Corporation

409
Value

Planning Processes & House Builds

No. Houses Built by Year

400

500

600

700

Year

N
o.

 H
ou

se
s 

B
ui

lt

2014-15 2015-16 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019

652
676

448

478
495

Total House Builds
from April 2019

409
Annual Target 
650

49

A
ppendix 4

ms-pbi://www.bing.com/maps?cp=52.78274074238727~-0.4785667089843737&lvl=9&style=r&FORM=BMLOGO


T
his page is intentionally left blank



Finance, Economic Development 
and Corporate Services Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee
19th November 2019

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

        

Fees and Charges - Charging Policy
The Charging Policy sets outs expectations when setting or revising charges for services from 
2020/21.  The purpose is to set the basis of charges within a more business-like framework.  The 
key principle is that charges should be set to fully recover costs or for any subsidy provided to be 
planned and approved.  

Report Author

Paul Clarke, Finance Lead (Housing Delivery)

 01476 406103

 Paul.Clarke@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Budget and Policy 
Framework

Two or more Wards

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 18 October 2019

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance 31 October 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 5 November 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee is asked to recommend the Charging Policy

51

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:Paul.Clarke@southkesteven.gov.uk


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 The current Fees and Charges Strategy was developed in 2012.  With the increasing 

pressures on local government finances, changes in payment technologies and citizens’ 
expectations, it was felt an appropriate time to redevelop and update the document to 
reflect changes in customer service requirements and the financial operating climate.

1.2 Purpose
As fees and charges are becoming an important element of funding for councils as 
Government funding reduces, it is important to ensure that fees and charges are set in a 
considered and consistent manner for South Kesteven District Council.  The Policy seeks to 
set out general principles although it is recognised that as each service is specific, there 
may be reasons why a particular service charging requirement does not align directly with 
this Policy.  The key focus is to ensure that fees and charges have been set in a reasoned 
manner; sometimes other Council priorities may mean a specific service deviates from 
these principles.

Principles

The following are the key principles of charging within SKDC:

Full cost recovery as a minimum is the default – the rationale for any subsidised service 
should be understood and should be regularly reviewed

There should be no presumption towards uniformity in charges.  Where appropriate 
charging different prices at different times/different locations should be considered

Opportunities for premium levels of service should be identified and attract increased 
charges where appropriate

Fees and charges should be taken in advance of service delivery where appropriate

For recurring charges, direct debit should be the preferred solution

There should be clear reasons for discounts and these should be regularly reviewed

Full cost recovery should include an overhead recovery rate of 30% for central costs 
where a different rate has not otherwise been agreed

The level of fees and charges should be reviewed annually with the normal default being 
that annual inflation is added 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
2.1  The OSC is asked to review and provide their feedback on the proposed Policy as shown 

at Appendix A.

3 Available Options Considered
3.1 Maintain the existing charging framework although it is recognised that residents’ 

expectations, government funding and technology have all changed since the original 
strategy was developed.

4 Preferred Option
4.1 Develop and endorse a new version of policy (see Appendix A) – this will enable a clear 

focus on the principles and ensure a document that is fit for purpose.

52



5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s)
5.1 Adopting the proposed Charging Policy will set a clear direction for setting of fees and 

charges.  The presumption of cost recovery as a minimum should ensure that any 
decisions to subsidise specific services is a conscious decision with the relative costs and 
benefits analysed.

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
6.1 Upon endorsement the revised document will be made available via the Council’s website 

and budgetary proposals going forward will be prepared following the guidance set out.

7 Financial Implications 
7.1 The Policy itself will not have any direct financial implications but it will ensure that the 

appropriate consideration is given between costs and benefits when setting charges, 
primarily as part of each budget cycle.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance

8 Legal and Governance Implications 
8.1 The Policy makes it clear that any legal restrictions on charging (either at all, or the 

amount charged) needs to be considered on a service by service basis ensuring that fees 
and charges are set in a considered and consistent manner within each service.    

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
9.1 When charges are reviewed there should be consideration on equality issues.  There is a 

specific section in the policy for discounts and exemptions from charging and equality 
assessments are required for service specific changes.

10 Risk and Mitigation
10.1 The Policy sets out costs and benefits that need to be considered when setting fees and 

charges for services.  Following the principles set out in the Policy will ensure there is 
clearer transparency and informed decision making when setting out fees and charges.

11 Community Safety Implications 
11.1 There are no community safety implications of this report.

12 Other Implications (where significant) 
12.1 None.

13 Background Papers
13.1 None.

14 Appendices
14.1 Appendix A – Charging Policy

53



Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

N/a

Previously Considered by: Finance, 
Economic Development and Corporate 
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee

N/a

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  27 February 2020

54



Appendix A
Charging Policy

Purpose
To ensure that fees and charges are set in a considered and consistent manner for South 
Kesteven District Council.

Disclaimer
By the nature of the document, this Policy seeks to set out general principles.  As each service is 
specific, there may be reasons why a specific service does not align directly with this Policy.  The 
key focus is to ensure that fees and charges have been set in a reasoned manner; sometimes 
other Council priorities may mean a specific service deviates from these principles.

Principles
The following are the key principles of charging within SKDC:

 Full cost recovery as a minimum is the default – the rationale for any subsidised services 
should be understood and these should be regularly reviewed

 There should be no presumption towards uniformity in charges.  Where appropriate 
charging different prices at different times/different locations should be considered

 Opportunities for premium levels of service should be identified and attract increased 
charges

 Fees & charges should be taken in advance of service delivery 
 For recurring charges, Direct Debit should be the preferred solution
 There should be clear reasons for discounts and these should be regularly reviewed
 Full cost recovery should include an overhead rate of 30% for central costs where a 

different rate has not otherwise been agreed
 The level of fees & charges should be reviewed annually, with the normal default being that 

inflation is added

Setting fees & charges
Different services are provided within a Council for different reasons.  Some may be focussed 
upon a financial return (rent for commercial property); whereas others provide wider health or 
society benefits which would otherwise be under-provided or under-purchased (social housing).

A good starting point is therefore to consider all services against two factors – degree of 
competition and amount of legislation about a service.  This can result plotting services on the 
matrix overleaf.  Examples are provided in each of the quadrants.

Those services in the top-right quadrant – the low regulation, high competition section should seek 
to fully recover costs and aim to make a return to the Council where possible.

Those in the bottom-left quadrant – high regulation, low / no competition should consider any 
regularity requirements.  If there is no restriction on charging, then full cost recovery as a minimum 
should be the default.

55



Services in either of the other two segments will need to consider the wider costs and benefits of 
the service when arriving at a charge.

Benchmarking can be a good indicator of the potential impact of changing price and give an 
indication of the efficiency of the service (whether it can meet its costs charging at a level similar to 
other organisations).  Benchmarking should only inform rather than be the main determination of 
price – if we cannot cost recover in a competitive environment then we should consider 
withdrawing from the market in that area.

In addition, there are some other factors where price can be used to influence behaviour:
 A higher price can dissuade people from using a service (fines for littering or parking 

violations, less healthy options in a vending machine)
 A lower price for a service can seeks to attract people from alternative perhaps more costly 

public services (pre-planning advice may ease the requirements when a full planning 
application is submitted)

 Testing the market for a new service may require a time of ‘loss-leading’ while demand is 
established, and costs spread more widely

 Charging can increase the perception of value of the service to the user

As a minimum, services should seek to cost recover from fees & charges.  Where this is not the 
case, the level of subsidy should be known and the reasons understood and documented.

There may be reasons why supply and demand change; whether this is based upon the time of 
the day, the geographical area the service is provided, wider market conditions or factors affecting 
costs (such as distance from base).  These should be considered and the impact of differential 
charging be considered alongside complexity for customers, cost of collection and non-cashable 
costs and benefits of a decision.

56



There should be no presumption towards uniformity in charges.  Where appropriate charging 
different prices at different times and/or at different locations should be considered.

Premium Services
It may be possible to provide a differential service for some customers, who may wish to receive a 
faster service, more support or a different output from the service compared to others.  In these 
circumstances it may be possible to provide different service levels and charge more for the 
premium level of service.  There are a series of things that should be considered:

 Legislation - is it possible to offered different tiers of service / does statute set prices or 
quality to prevent such charging?

 If the service is statutory, are all current elements of the service statutory?  Are any 
elements of the overall offer divisible (e.g. such as when pre-planning advice was split from 
post-submission planning determination)?

 Are there other value added or additional services that could be provided alongside the 
main offer?

 Has there been any customer feedback about the service that would suggest demand for 
additional or differential services?

 Compare potential tiers of service to current levels of performance and any statutory 
requirements in terms of speed / quality

 Determine if there are cost / resource implications of providing a higher level of service
 Determine if there are cost / resource savings of reducing the standard level of service to 

statutory minimums
 Determine any impact on current quality of provision if a premium alternative was offered
 Define minimum quality standards for both the standard and premium offering
 Map expected take-up, carry out sensitivity for both changes to costs and income
 Consider need for consultation or a pilot

Where a service is provided at different service levels then a higher price should be associated 
with the higher service level.  Where it is possible to differentiate service, but it is decided not to, 
the reasons for this decision should be clearly documented.

Collection methods
Chasing debt takes time, costs money and some debts get written off – this can be a particularly 
large cost for small value fees & charges.  It is therefore preferable to take payments before a 
service is provided.

There are reasons why this might not be possible:
 Legislation may require us to act (especially in an emergency) then seek to recover costs 

back (for example repairs to homes falling into dangerous disrepair)
 If competitors charge via invoice, then only offering payment in advance may lead to people 

choosing them
 Larger companies may prefer or require paying via invoice, so that they can process via 

their standard payment processes (and for recovery of VAT)

Payments should be taken in advance of service provision.  Where this is not the case, the 
reasons for this should be clearly documented.

57



For periodic payments (where the customer will have a regular service from us, such as trade 
waste collection or leisure subscription fees) the default should be by direct debit.  This is the 
easiest and cheapest way for collection over a series of payments, whilst also giving protections to 
the consumer (via the direct debit guarantee scheme).  This may involve making sure Direct Debit 
is offered as the first method of payment; opt-in campaigns and/or considering a one-off discount 
for changing (see section below). 

Direct Debit should be the preferred solution for reoccurring payments

Discounts / Exemptions
There may be several reasons why discounts are given; ranging from incentivising a method of 
payment, through to encouraging use of a service from a disadvantaged group.  Some questions 
to consider when setting a discount:

 What is the purpose of any discounts given (e.g. encourage uptake from disadvantaged 
groups, to encourage certain payment methods)?

 Is there evidence to support that the discounts support the purpose given?
 When was the last time the discounts / exemptions were reviewed?
 Do the discounts lead to an overall subsidy for the service or is the discount recovered from 

other users?
 If a service is means tested, what test is used?  Could (with appropriate permissions 

granted by the customer), the Council’s own systems be used as evidence (for example 
using Council Tax benefit as the main means test)?

 If payments are settled by invoice, what is the payment profile, are elements written off?  
Would an early payment settlement or discount for in advance / via direct debit be cost 
effective for the service / the Council as a whole?

 Does demand change through the day/week/season/year?  Have discounts been 
considered for times of lower demand?

 Is there a different market for individuals and businesses?  Could a bulk discount offered to a 
company lead to multiple sales justifying a larger discount?

Discounts should be linked to specific objectives and the measurement of those objectives 
periodically reviewed.

Cost Recovery – including central costs
Recent charges to local government finance rules resulted in central support costs (finance, legal, 
ICT) no longer being recharged to service department budgets (with some ring-fenced exceptions 
such as the Housing Revenue Account).  This makes it harder to determine the full cost of a 
service; which in turn makes it harder to determine the price of full cost recovery.

Where full cost recovery is the aim, the direct (gross) service cost should be increased by 30% to 
cover central costs, unless a different charge has been specific to a service area.

Considering impact of change
As with any change to services, Equality analysis should be undertaken if there is likely to be a 
change to potentially disadvantaged groups.  The results of this should be given full consideration 
alongside all other costs and benefits from making a change.

58



Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2019/20
DRAFT Work Programme

Item Current Issues/Status Date Outcome sought

2018/19 outturn and 
performance

Outturn considered by Governance and Audit on 21 June 2019 
and Cabinet on 9 July 2019

Recommendations as necessary to 
Cabinet

Contract tendering 
process review Item arising from call-in meeting on 14 June 2019 Recommendations to Governance 

and Audit Committee

Committee’s remit Committee to review its terms of reference and consider items it 
would like to see included

16 July 
2019

Recommendations to Constitution 
Committee

Q1 financials and 
performance Quarterly reporting Recommendations as necessary to 

Cabinet

Deepings special 
expense area Added on 16th July 2019 at the request of Councillor Baxter

To make recommendations to 
Cabinet to inform the budget setting 
process

Local Plan Main 
Modifications

5 
September 
2019

Comments to Cabinet 

Q2 Financials Quarterly reporting Recommendations as necessary to 
Cabinet

Q2 Performance Quarterly reporting Recommendations as necessary to 
Cabinet

Fees and Charges 
Policy To consider the redeveloped Policy Recommendations to Cabinet on 

draft Policy

Additional Meeting To confirm an additional meeting date

19 
November 
2019

To confirm an extra meeting to 
discuss the future Leisure 
management options (27 November 
2019)

59

A
genda Item

 11



Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2019/20
DRAFT Work Programme

Item Current Issues/Status Date Outcome sought

Development 
infrastructure

Economic 
Development 
Strategy and role of 
InvestSK

Recommendations as necessary to 
Cabinet, further work to develop an 
updated Economic Development 
Strategy

Transformation 
including IT and 
infrastructure

Housing delivery test 
action plan

To review progress against the action plan agreed by Cabinet on 
9th July 2019

4 February 
2020

To make any recommendations to 
Cabinet as necessary

Outputs and returns 
arising from the 
Council’s companies

21 April 
2020

Asset Management 
Strategy TBC

Recommendations to Cabinet on 
draft Asset Management Strategy

Bourne Leisure 
Centre Outline 
Business Case

To discuss the outline business case for the Bourne Leisure 
Centre TBC

To comment on the Business case 
and make recommendations to 
Cabinet as appropriate

Town Centre and Car 
parking review 

Explore the potential of establishing a number of joint Task and 
Finish panels to continue the review work started by previous 
OSCs

TBC To report findings to the FED & CS 
Committee

60


	Agenda
	5 Action notes of the meeting held on 5 September 2019
	7 Finance Update Report- quarter 2 2019/20
	8 Quarter 2 performance
	Appendix 1 Q2 2019
	Appendix 2 Occupancy rates of retail units
	Appendix 4 Planning dashboard

	9 Fees and Charges - Charging Policy
	11 Work programme

